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Dear Petitioner: 

 

This is in reference to your application for correction of your naval record pursuant to Section 

1552 of Title 10, United States Code.  After careful and conscientious consideration of relevant 

portions of your naval record and your application, the Board for Correction of Naval Records 

(Board) found the evidence submitted insufficient to establish the existence of probable material 

error or injustice.  Consequently, your application has been denied. 

 

Although you did not file your application in a timely manner, the statute of limitation was 

waived in accordance with the 25 August 2017 guidance from the Office of the Under Secretary 

of Defense for Personnel and Readiness (Kurta Memo).  A three-member panel of the Board, 

sitting in executive session, considered your application on 13 April 2022.  The names and votes 

of the panel members will be furnished upon request.  Your allegations of error and injustice 

were reviewed in accordance with administrative regulations and procedures applicable to the 

proceedings of this Board.  Documentary material considered by the Board consisted of your 

application together with all material submitted in support thereof, relevant portions of your 

naval record, and applicable statutes, regulations, and policies, to include the Kurta Memo, the  

3 September 2014 guidance from the Secretary of Defense regarding discharge upgrade requests 

by Veterans claiming post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) (Hagel Memo), and the 25 July 2018 

guidance from the Under Secretary of Defense for Personnel and Readiness regarding equity, 

injustice, or clemency determinations (Wilkie Memo).  The Board also considered an advisory 

opinion (AO) from a qualified mental health professional dated 23 February 2022, which was 

previously provided to you. 

 

You enlisted in the Marine Corps and began a period of active duty on 30 November 1976.  

During the period from 27 April 1977 to 9 January 1979, you received four instances of non-

judicial punishment (NJP).  Your offenses were five periods of unauthorized absence totaling  

40 days.  On 23 June 1980, you were convicted by a special court-martial (SPCM) of  

an unauthorized absence totaling 187 days.  As punishment, you were sentenced to confinement.  

On 20 September 1980, you received your fifth NJP for disobeying a lawful order, to wit: 

drinking intoxicating liquor without permission during the battalion deployment.  
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On 17 September 1981, you submitted a written request for separation for the good of the service 

in lieu of trial by court-martial for an unauthorized absence totaling 334 days.  Prior to submitting 

this request, you conferred with a military lawyer at which time you were advised of your rights 

and warned of the probable adverse consequences of accepting such a discharge.  As part of this 

discharge request, you admitted your guilt to the foregoing offense and acknowledged that your 

characterization of service upon discharge would be other than honorable (OTH).  The separation 

authority approved your request and directed your commanding officer to discharge you with an 

OTH characterization of service, and on 9 October 1981, you were so discharged.  This Board 

previously denied your request for relief on 23 March 2020.  

 

As part of the Board’s review, a qualified mental health professional reviewed your request and 

provided the Board with an AO on 23 February 2022.  The AO noted that in service, you were 

diagnosed with a possible personality disorder, indicating unsuitability for military service.   

Post-service, civilian providers determined a diagnosis of PTSD may be partially attributed to 

military service.  The AO further noted that while it is possible that your misconduct could be 

related to unrecognized PTSD avoidance symptoms, it is difficult to establish a nexus between 

your in service misconduct and post-discharge PTSD which was diagnosed more than three 

decades after your separation and given the limited information regarding your purported 

traumatic events in service from your medical records and personal statement.  The AO 

concluded that additional records are required to render an alternate opinion, and stated that there 

is post-service evidence that you may have incurred PTSD or another unfitting mental health 

condition during military service; however, there is insufficient evidence that all of your 

misconduct could be attributed to PTSD or another unfitting mental health condition. 

 

The Board carefully reviewed your application, weighed all potentially mitigating factors, and 

considered your contention that you were treated unjustly.  You further state your reasoning for 

going in an unauthorized absence status was for your safety.  Additionally, you feel that your 

discharge should be upgraded based on your “paranoia, anxiety attacks, racial discrimination, 

nightmares, and KKK meetings that were happening.”  Unfortunately, after careful consideration 

of the AO, your submission of supporting documentation, and applying liberal consideration, the 

Board did not find an error or injustice that warrants granting clemency in the form of upgrading 

your characterization of service.     

 

The Board carefully considered all potentially mitigating factors to determine whether the 

interests of justice warrant relief in your case in accordance with the Wilkie Memo.  These 

included, but were not limited to, your desire to upgrade your discharge character of service and 

contentions as previously discussed.  For purposes of clemency consideration, the Board noted 

your submission of supporting documentation; however, you did not provide supporting 

documentation describing post-service accomplishments.  Based upon this review, the Board 

concluded your potentially mitigating factors were insufficient to warrant relief.  Specifically, the 

Board determined that your misconduct, as evidenced by your five NJPs, SPCM conviction, and 

an extensive period of unauthorized absence that formed the basis for your discharge, 

outweighed these mitigating factors.  In making this finding, the Board considered the 

seriousness of your misconduct and concluded your record of misconduct showed a complete 

disregard for military authority and regulations.  As a result, the Board determined your conduct 






